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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To
The Members of
Integrated Casetech Consultants Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Integrated Casetech
Consultants Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
March 31, 2021, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on
that date, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “the financial statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act,
2013 in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at March 31, 2021, its loss including other comprehensive loss, its changes in equity and cash
flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAT’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of matters

As stated in Note No. 41 of the financial statements, the Company has raised credit notes
during the year for the reason stated in note.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of above matter.
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statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, total
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to
do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SA’s will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of financial statements is included in
Annexure “A” of this Auditors report of Integrated Casetech Consultant Private Limited for
the financial year ending March 31, 2021.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the

Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure

— ‘B’ a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extend

applicable;

As required by Section143(3) of the Act, we report that, ==
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g)

Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.
In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act.
On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2021 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with financial reporting of
the Company and operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure C”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to
financial reporting.
With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:
i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note No 31 of financial statements;
ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there are any material foreseeable losses.
iii) As explained, there has been no amount required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

FOR MITTAL GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants

FRN 01874C
O resl Korex
(Dir& m{lar 1)‘ﬁ/gam)

Partner

Membership No. 414272

Place of Signature: Kanpur
Date: 04.06.2021

UIDN: 21414272AAAAFE6132
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ANNEXURE ‘A’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The annexure referred to in the auditor’s report of Integrated Casetech Consultants Private
Limited for the year ended March 31, 2021.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, [orgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit ﬁn ding any significant
14
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relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

FOR MITTAL GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 01874C

Partner
Membership No. 414272

Place of Signature: Kanpur
Date: 04.06.2021
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ANNEXURE ‘B’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
The Annexure — ‘B’ referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the
members of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021:

i)

In respect of its Property, Plant and Equipments:

a) The company has generally maintained proper records showing full particulars
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there is a regular program
of verification of property, plant and equipment by the management, which in our
opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its
assets. Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically verified by the
management at the year end and as per the report, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

¢) The company does not have any immovable properties of freehold or leasehold land
and building and hence reporting under the clause 3(i) (c) of the Order is not
applicable.

In respect of its Inventory:

The Company does not have any inventory and hence reporting under clause 3 (ii) of the

Order is not applicable.

iii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examinations

of the records, in our opinion, the Company has not granted any secured and unsecured
loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnership or other parties covered in the
Register maintained under Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, therefore paragraph
(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

iv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examinations

of the records, in our opinion, the Company has not granted any loans or made any
investments, or provided any guarantee or security to the parties covered under section
185 and 186 of the Companies Act 2013. Therefore, the provision of clause 3(iv) of the
said order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company
has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of section 73, 74, 75
and 76 of the Act read with the Companies (Acceptance & Deposit) Rules 2014 and other
relevant provisions of the Act, to the extent notified.

vi) According to the information and explanation given to us maintenance of Cost Records

U/s-148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 as prescribed by
applicable to the company.

1 Government are not
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vii) In respect of statutory dues:

(a) As explained to us, the statutory dues payable by the Company comprises mainly of
Provident Fund, Goods and Service Tax ( GST), Income-tax, Service-tax, and other
material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the records of the Company and
information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been regularly depositing
the aforesaid undisputed statutory dues with the appropriate authorities and there have
been serious delays in large number of cases. There are no undisputed statutory dues as
referred to above as at March 31,2021 outstanding for a period of more than six months
from the date they become payable except for the following:
(Amount in Lakhs.)

Particulars Amount | Particulars Amount

TDS Payable 4.17 TDS Demand 26.62

b)According to the information and explanations given to us, the particulars of
Income tax, Service-tax, Sales-tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty, Entry tax, Value
Added Tax, Goods and Service Tax as at March 31,2021 which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, are as reported in Note No.31 to the
accompanying financial statements
viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, in our opinion, the Company
has not defaulted in repayment of loans and borrowings to any financial institution, bank
and government during the period. The Company has not borrowed any money by way of
issue of debentures.

ix) The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public
offer (including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provision of
paragraph (ix) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

x) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried
out in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to
the information and explanation given to us, we have neither come across any instance of
material fraud by the Company or on the company by its officers or employees, noticed or
reported during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the
Management.

xi) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examinations
of the records, the Company has not paid/provided managerial remuneration to any
director during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of s ‘U.Pr 197 read with Schedule V

4
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xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examinations
of the records, in our opinion, the transactions with related parties are in compliance with
the provisions of sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable. The details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as required
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under

Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 15 of the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2015.

xiv) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly Convertible Debenture during the year under review. Accordingly, the
provision of paragraph (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the company.

xv) The Company has not entered into any non- cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph (xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the provision of paragraph (xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the company.

FORMITTAL GUPTA & CO.
Chartered Accountants
FRN 01874C

;awf)‘ )i
(Dinesh Kumar Nigag
Partner
Membership No. 414272

Place of Signature: Kanpur
Date: 04.06.2021
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ANNEXURE ‘C’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(The Annexure — ‘C’ referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members
of the Company on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2021)

Report on the Internal Financial Control under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
Integrated Casctech Consultants Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March, 2021 in
conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the company for the year ended on
that date.

Management’s Responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control with reference to financial
statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable
financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor‘s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an
audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evide bout the adequacy
of the internal financial control system with reference to faaricia ments and their
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financi 011 h reference to
financial statements included obtaining an understanding ¢} nancial controls
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with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial control with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Intermal Financial Controls with reference to Financial
Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statcmq‘ts and such internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements/Zwe

at 31 March 2021, based on the internal control with r¢feréHick s




Integrated Casetech Consultants Private Limited
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2021

g2 e . As at March 31 Asat March 31
Particulars Note No, 2021 20120
ASSETS
Non-current assels
a) Property. Plant and Logupment il 0,507 425081
b Other Intangible Asscrs Ha) 42 826 64 448
<1 Right of use assets dih) - 163,360
d) Financial Assets
1) Investmens b 15,006 15,000
¢} Incomc tax assets (et 4] 5850227 16.234.112
) Deferred tax assets (net) 7 13,142,727 11,298 448
) Orther non - currenn assels & 162,500 1118391
Total non - current asseis 19,709,787 29,318,840
Current assets
a} lnventonies -
a) Financial Assets
i) Trade receivables ) 29722119 103 665 440
i) Cash and cash equivalents 4] 1910732 1,627,206
i) Bank balances other than ¢ (1) above 11 1.077.029 6,094 881
) Loans 12 13,341,375 12,144,525
v} Other financial assets 13 47998911 16,657,911
by Other current assets g 22,894 B54 8,597,779
Total current assets 119,945 020 148,787,802
TOTAL ASSETS 139,654,807 178,106,642
FOUITY AND LIABILITIES
|Equity
a)Share capital 15 2.358,000 2.338,000
b) Other equity 16 29144 216 38.010,705
Total Equity - 31502216 40,368,705
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities - -
b} Provisions 17 1,210,917 1,533,384
Tatal Non-Current Liabilities 1,210,917 1,533,384
Current linbilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Bomowings
i1} Trade payables
(a) Due of MSME - B
(b) Due of other than MSME 18 67,468,801 93,706,862
1) Other financial labilities 19 22,713,294 23,244,149
iv) Lease liabilities - 173,615
1y) Provisions 20 143,233 212,914
¢} Other current liabilities 21 16,616,346 18,867 012
Total Current Liabilities 106,941,674 136,204,553
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 139,654,807 178,106,642

See accompanying notes 1 to 45 forming part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

FOR MITTAL GUPTA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGN. NO: 01874C

’_D;r\ffl- )

(Dinesh Kumar Nigam)
Partner

M.NoA414272

Place - Kanpur

Date : 04.06.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

. ﬁ_QL-s..\,kﬁ'f;;— \\r'h '

Gurmit Singh Mann

Vinay Kulshrestha
(Manager-Accounts)

Place : Noida
Date  04.06.2021
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FOR MITTAL GUPTA & CO,
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGN. NO: 01874C

- [
rb‘n*’f’“ j ﬁf:z‘.’ﬂ ngh nm&‘L“
(Dinesh Kumar Nigam)
Partner
M.No.414272
Place : Kanpur
Date: 04.062021

Place : Noida
Date; 04.06.2021

Integrated Casetech Consultants Private Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss Tor the year ended March 31, 2021
(Amount in Rs)
Particulirs Note Year ended| Year ended March
- | No. | Mareh 31,2021 31.2020

i Revenue from operations 22 57.035.322 237563 806

it |Other income 23 4,313,759 2.542.945

il [TOTAL INCOME {iv i) 61,349,081 240,106,751

iv |Expenses
Purchases ol stock-m-trade 24 A 2 B5K.365
Lmployee benefit expense 25 43,783,114 159,516,122
Depreciation and amortisation expense 26 319.557 491.540)
Finance costs 27 471.954 B17.870)
Other expenses | 28 24,664 464 72.482.688|
TOTAL EXPENSES 69,239,089 236,166,585

v [PROFITALOSS) BEFORE EXCEPTIONAL ITEMS AND TAX
{iii-iv) (7.890,008) 3.940.166

vi |Exceptional items - -
PROFITALOSS) BEFORE TAX FROM CONTINUING 3.940.166

vii [OPERATIONS (v-vi) (7,890,008) Y

viii [Tax expense: 29
- Current tax - T58.000)
- Deferred tax (1,961,279) 314,000,
- Income Tax Adjustment 3273338 -
TOTAL TAX EXPENSE 1,312,059 1,072,000]
PROTTIT/(1.0SS) FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING

ix |OPERATIONS (vii-viii) (9,202,067) 2,868,166

X |OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSSES)

(A) (1) Items that will not be reclassified to profit & loss 452,578 (248.386)
{a)Reimeasurements of post-employment benefit obligation(net) 452,578 (248.386)
(b)Net changes in fair values of investments in equity shares carricd - -
at fair value through OC|
(ii) Income tax relating to item that will not be reclasified to profit &
loss (117,000) 64,500

(B} |(i) [tems that will be reclassified to profit & loss - -
(i1) Income tax relatimg to item that will be reclasified to profit & - =
loss
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME(A + B) 335,578 (183,886)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

X |(IX +X) (8,8606,489) 2,684,280]

xii |Earnings per equity share of face share of Rs 10/- cach
Basic & Diluted earning per share (Rs) 12 (39.02) 12.16
See accompanying notes 1 to 45 forming part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even dale For and on behalf of the Board of Directors




Integrated Casetech Consullants Private Limited
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2021

Amounts( In Rs.)

Particulars

Yoear ended
March 31, 2021

v [Cash flow from operating activities
MNet Profn {loss) before exceptional items and tax as per Satement of Prolit and Loss

Adjustments to reconcile profit before exceptional items and extra ordinary items and tax to net cash
flow provided by operating activities :

17 890,008)

Year ended
_March 31, 2020 |

19400 166

Deprecianon and imparment of property, plant and equipmen 319,557 4491 540
Interest costs 471,954 569,484
Fimance income {396,801 638,549
Gain on foreign currency transactions and translation 179438 425,299
Provision for doubtful trade receivables and other advances 1,789.270 1,352 895
Liahilities pravisions no longer required written back 13,916,956) 1334,416)
Operating profit before working capital adjustments (7.343,548) 9,083,517
Working capital adjustments
{Increase) ‘Decrease m trade receivables 7,640,003 (64,586,450)
(Increase) Decrease i other non current and other current financial assets (33,056 316) (12.638,310)
(Ingrease) Decrease i other assets 114,306, 633) 11,871,396)
Increase | (Decrease) i trade and other payables (23,647,021) 53,362,710
Inerease | (Decrease) m other non current and other current frnancial labilities Y95 108 4,535 28]
Increase | (Decrease) m other non current and other current liabilines (2,250,667) 7,175,210
Pavables and Provisions (392,148) (291,790)
(ash generated from operations (9,361,164) (7,231,228)
Direct taxes{ paid)/refund 7,626,881 5.421,066
Net cash generated from operating activities (1,734,283) (1,810,162)
B |Cash fMlow from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment - (251,376)
Interest received 341,466 (731,997)
{Increase) /Decrease in bank balances other than cash & cash equivaleni 4,069 321 2,903,383
Net cash flow from / (used in) investing activities 4,410,787 1,920,010
' |Cash flow from financing activities
Pavment of lease liabilitics {180,000) (360,000
Finance cost paid {213,038) (525,948)
Net cash flow from / (used in) financing activities (393,038) (885,948)
D |Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 2,283 466 (776,100)
E |Opening cash & cash equivalents 1,627,266 2,403,366
¥ |Closing cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of Cash Flow St (refer note no, 10) (D+E) 3,910,732 1,627,266
Notes: -
1 The above cash (low statement has been prepared under the indirect method setout in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 7 -
2 Figures in brackets indicate cash outflow from respective activities
3 Cash and cash equivalents as at the Bal Sheet date consists of
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash in hand 3,243 114,983
Current Account 3,907,489 1,512,283
Cash and cash equivalents 3,910,732 1,627,266

A4 As break up of cash and cash equivalents is also available in note no. 10, reconciliation of items of cash and cash equivalents as per Cash Flow

statement with the respective items reported in the Balance Sheet 15 not required and hence not provided

As per our report of even date
FOR MITTAL GUPTA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGN. NO: 01874C

Direrl

(Dinesh Kumar Nigam)
Partner

M.No 414272

Place : Kanpur

Date © 04.06.2021

[Mnﬁager-;\ccnmms)

Place  Noida
Date ; 04.06.2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors




Integrated Casetech Consultants Private Limited
Statement of Change in Equity

Equity share capital (Amount in Rs)

Particulars | Amount |
Equity share capital as at Apnl 12019 B 2358 000
Change during the year -
Equity share capital as at March 31, 2020 2,358.000

Particulars Amount
Equity share capital as at Apnil 1. 2020 2358000
Change during the year -
Equity share eapital as at March 31, 2021 2,358,000
Other equity {Amount in Hs)

Reserves and surplus Item of other comprehensive
Actuarial gain /
) Retiined Securities ) (i;llin { (loss) on {loss) on Total
Particulars caruigs premium General reserve | investment ecmployee
reserve through FYOCI| benefit plans
throughOCE | |

As at April 01, 2020 36,809,545 1,782,000 8,500 000 (11,765,120) - 35326425
Proft/(loss) for the year 2 868,166 - - 2,868 166
Other comprehensive income lor the year - - - - (183 886) (183 BRG)
Transter from/to other comprehensive income/retained {183,886) - - - |83 886 -
edarnings
As at March 31, 2020 39,493,825 1,782,000 8,500,000 (11,765,120) - 38,010,705
Profit/(loss) for the vear (9,202 067) - - - w (9,202,067)
Other comprehensive income for the year - - - - 335,578 335578
Transfer from/to other comprehensive income/retained 335 578 - - - (335,578) -
earnings
As at March 31, 2021 30,627,336 1,782,000 8,500,000 (11,765,120) - 29,144,216

A. Rights, preference and restriction attached to shares:

a. In respect of equity shares, voting right shall be in same proportion as the capital
b. 1he dividend proposed by the Board of Ihrectors which 1s subject to the approva

Meeting shall be in the same proportion as the capital paid upon such equity share,
c. In the event ol hiquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible o receive the remaming assets of the Company i proportion to

capital paid upon such equity share.

|1'Jald upon such equity share.
ol the shareholders in the Annual General

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Diregtors
FOR MITTAL GUPTA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

FIRM REGN. NO 01874C ‘,.\- G

S k e
(”unnil angh S

(Director

n Kaur Mann

e oo

(Dine umar ngnm]

Partner Kulshrestha il o {
MNo414272 anager-Accounts) \ 1.,
Place : Kanpur

Date : Place - Noida

Date' OM,pb-bo2)
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NOTES FORMING PART OF THE ACCOUNTS

L

2.1

Corporate Information

R

Integrated Casetech Consultants Private Limited, a Company registered under Companies Act, 1956,
and having CIN U74140UP2008PTC092701 was incorporated on 14th day November, 2008 and has
its registered office at Noida, Uttar Pradesh.

The Company is primarily engaged in the business of providing services involving sugar mill
operations, maintenance, refinery operations and performance improvement, process technology for
refinery etc. in India and abroad. These financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31st
March, 2021 are approved and authorized for issue by the Company's Board of Directors on 04.06.202]

Basis of preparation and presentation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) read with the Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended) and relevant amendment rules thereafter and
accounting principles generally accepted in India.

These financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis using the significant accounting
policies and measurement bases summarized below. Accounting Policies have been consistently applied
except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing
accounting standard requires a change in accounting policy hitherto in use. In those cases the new
accounting policy is adopted in accordance with the transitional provisions stipulated in that Ind AS and
in absence of such specific transitional provision, the same is adopted retrospectively for all the periods
presented in these financial statements.

ii)Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards.
There is no such notification which would have been applicable from April I, 2021.

iii) Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial assets
and liabilities (refer accounting policy regarding financial instruments) and assets for defined benefit
plans that are measured at fair value and less cost of sale wherever require. The methods used to measure
fair values are discussed further in notes to financial statements.

iv) Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian rupees (INR), which is company functional currency.

v) Operating Cycle

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in Schedule 11 to the Companics Act, 2013 based on the nature
of services rendered and time between the acquisition of asset for providing services and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents.
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2.2 Current versus non-current classification
The company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current
classification.

An asset is treated as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

e Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading

o Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date, or

e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle liability for at
least twelve months after the reporting date.

Current assets include the current portion of non-current financial assets. All other assets are classified
as non-current.

A liability is treated as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

e Expected to be settled in the company’s normal operating cycle;

o Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

e Due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

e The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting date.

e Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the
issue of equity instruments do not affect its classification.

Current liabilities include the current portion of non-current financial liabilities. All other liabilities are
classified as non-current.

The Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-
current classification of assets and liabilities

2.3 Use of Estimates and management judgements
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
requires management of the company to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets, liabilities and related disclosures concerning the items
involved as well as contingent assets and liabilities at the balance sheet date.

The estimates and management’s judgments are based on previous experience and other factors
considered reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods
affected.

The areas involving critical judgment are as follows:
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vi)

i)Fair value measurements of financial instruments:
When the fair value of financial assets and liabilities recorded in the Balance sheet cannot be measured
based on the quoted market price in the active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation
technique. The input to these model is taken from the observable market where possible, but if this is
not feasible, a review of judgment is required to establish fair values. Changes in assumption relating
to these assumptions could affect the fair value of financial instrument.

ii) Employee benefit plans:
Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include
mortality and withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in discount
rates, the rate of salary increases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions
used 1o measure its obligations are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in these
assumptions may have a material impact on the resulting calculations

iii) Recoverability of trade receivables:
The Company has a stringent policy of ascertaining impairments, if any, as result of detailed scrutiny
of major cases and through determining expected credit losses. Despite best estimates and periodic
credit appraisals of customers, the Company’s receivables are exposed to delinquency risks due to
material adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the party’s ability to meet its obligations. All such parameters relating to
impairment or potential impairment are reviewed at each reporting date.

iv) Provision and contingencies:
The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in
accordance with Ind AS 37, ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’. The
evaluation of the likelihood of the contingent events has required best judgment by management
regarding the probability of exposure to potential loss. The timing of recognition and quantification of
the liability requires the application of judgment to existing facts and circumstances, which can be
subject to change.

v) Useful life and residual value of plant, property equipment and intangible assets:
The useful life and residual value of plant, property equipment and intangible assets are determined
based on technical evaluation made by the management of the expected usage of the asset, the
physical wear and tear and technical or commercial obsolescence of the asset. Due to the judgments
involved in such estimations, the useful life and residual value are sensitive to the actual usage in
future period.

Income Tax

The Company’s tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgments are involved in estimating budgeted
profits for the purpose of paying advance tax, determining the provision for income taxes, including
amount expected to be paid/recovered for uncertain tax positions

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses and unused tax credit to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit would be available against which the losses could be utilized. Significant
management judgment is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax
planning strategies.
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2.4

A.

Significant Accounting Policies
Property Plant& Equipment & Capital work in Progress

a) Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply for
ooods and services, rental to others or for administrative purposes and are expected to be used during
more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is being recognized as an asset if and only if it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Freehold lands are stated at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost,
net of recoverable taxes less accumulated depreciation, and impairment loss, if any.

The cost of an asset includes the purchase cost of material, including import dutics and non-
refundable taxes, and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to the location and condition
of its intended use. Interest on borrowings used to finance the construction of qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of the cost of the asset until such time that the asset is ready for its intended use.

Items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment are capitalized. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and
recognized in the statement of profit and loss on consumption. When parts of an item of PPE have
different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate component.

When the significant part of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals,
the company derecognized the replaced parts and recognised the new parts with its own associated
life and it is depreciated accordingly. Likewise when a major inspection is performed, its cost is
recognised in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement, il the recognition
criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the Statement of Profit
and Loss as incurred.

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of an asset after its use, if any, is
included in the cost of the respective asset if the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statement upon sale
or retirement of the asset and resultant gains or losses are recognized in the Statement of Profit and
lLoss.

Assets identified and technically evaluated as obsolete are retired from active use and held for
disposal are stated at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less cost to sell.
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Capital work-in-progress, representing expenditure incurred in respect of assets under development
and not ready for their intended use, are carried at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses,
construction cost, related borrowing cost and other direct expenditure

b) Subsequent Expenditure.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future cconomic benefits
associated  with the expenditure will flow to the Company.

Intangible Assets
Intangible assets are recognized when it is probable that the future benefits that are attributable to the
assets will flow to the Company and the cost of the assets can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and
expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure is
incurred.

An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal, or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use. Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset, measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in
profit or loss when the asset is derecognized.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation commences when the assets are available for their intended use. Depreciation is
caleulated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives. Except in case of Property, plant & Equipments costing up to Rs. 5,000 are
fully depreciated in the year of purchase. The management has estimated the useful lives and residual
values of all property, plant and equipment and adopted useful lives as stated in Schedule 11 of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Intangible assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful economic life of the
assets. The Company uses a rebuttable presumption that the useful life of intangible assets is ten years
from the date when the assets is available for use.

Right of use assets are depreciated on straight line method (SLM) over the period of life of right of use
assets or lease terms whichever expire earlier except in case of right of use assets, the ownership of
which is proposed to be transferred to the company or the cost of such assets reflects that the company
will exercise a purchase option, the same is depreciated on straight line method (SL.M) over the useful
life of the assets.
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Leases

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease
adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably
certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and
thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract
will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant
leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease
and the importance of the underlying asset to Company's operations taking into account the location ol
the underlying asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is
reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.

(a) The Company as a lessee

The Company's leasc asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings. The Company

assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains,

a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the

use of an identified asset, the company assesses whether:

(i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset

(ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the
period of the lease and

(iif) The Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset ("ROU")

and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for

leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and low value leases. For these

short-term and low value leases, the company recognizes the lease payments as an operating

expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of
the lease term. ROU assets and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably
certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the
lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

Right of use assets is evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment
testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-
use) is determined on an individual asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that
are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is
determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.
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The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease
payments. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, il not
readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the country of domicile ol these
leases. Lease liabilities are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right- of-
use asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a
termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the Balance Sheet and lease
payments have been classified as financing cash flows

(b)As a lessor

Leases for which the company is a lessor is classified as a finance or operating lease. Whenever
the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee,
the contract is classified as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as operating leases.
When the Company is an intermediate lessor, it accounts for its interests in the head lease and the
sublease separately. The sublease is classified as a finance or operating lease by reference to the
right-of-use asset arising from the head lease.

For operating leases, rental income is recognized on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease,

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalized during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that the Company incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs also
include exchange differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

Employee benefit plans:
Expenses and liabilities in respect of employee benefits are recorded in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (Ind AS)-19 - 'Employee Benefits'.

i. Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are
expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is recognized for the amount expected to
be paid e.g., under short-term cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the
amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

ii. Defined contribution plans
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay
further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly contributions towards Government
administered provident fund scheme. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans
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iv.

are recognized as an employee benefit expense in profit or loss in the periods during which the
related services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognized as an asset (o
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Retirement benefit in the form of superannuation fund is a defined contribution scheme. The
Company has established a Superannuation Fund Trust to which contributions are made
quarterly. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the superannuation fund scheme as
expenditure, when an employee renders the related service. The Company has no other
obligations beyond its quarterly contributions.

Defined benefit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan.
The company net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and
prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using
the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benelfits available in
the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan
(‘the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration
is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses.
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if' any, excluding
interest), are recognized in OCL. The company determines the net interest expense (income) on
the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to
measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net
defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit
liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest
expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.
When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost™ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss
on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The company recognizes gains and
losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits other than post-
employment benefits is the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present
value, and the fair value of any related assets is deducted. The obligation is measured on the
basis of an annual independent actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. Re-
measurements gain or losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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v. Voluntary Retirement Scheme
Expenditure on voluntary retirement scheme is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss in
the year in which it is incurred.

G. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The bases of determining
cost for different categories of inventory are as follows:

Stock in trade | - |First in first out (FIFO)
Scrap | - |First in first out (FIFO)
H. Financial Instruments

a) Financial Asset.
i. Classification
The company classified financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss on the
basis of its business model for managing the financial assets and contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial asset.

ii, Initial Recognition and Measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial
assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
The financial assets include equity securities, trade and other receivables, loans and
advances and cash and bank balances.

iili. Subsequent Measurement
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in the following
categorics:
e At amortized cost,
e At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI), and
e At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL).
iv. Debt instrument at amortized cost
A “Debts instrument” is measured at the amortized cost if both the following condition are
met:

o 'The assets are held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for
collecting contractual cash flow(business model test) , and

o Contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principle and interest on the principle amount outstanding (contractual cash
flow characteristics ).
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v.

vii.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount and premium and fee or costs that are an integral part of an EIR.
The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The
losses arising from impairment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Debt instrument at fair value through profit or loss
Debt instruments included within the fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) category
are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
A financial asset should be measured at FVTOCI if both the following conditions are met:

o The asset is held within a business model in which asset are managed both in order (o
collect contractual cash flows and for sale , and
Contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely

o

payments of principle and interest on the principle amount outstanding.

After initial measurement (at fair value minus transaction cost), such financial assets are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognized in OCI except for:

(a) Interest calculated using EIR

(b) Foreign exchange gain and losses , and

(c) Impairment losses and gains
Equity investments
All equity investments in the scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value except in case
of investment in associates company of holding company which are carried at cost/deemed
cost and reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date. Deemed cost is the carrying
amount under the previous GAAP as at the transition date i.e. April 01, 2016. Equity
instruments included within the FVTPL category, if any, are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in profit or loss. The Company may make an irrevocable election to
present in OCI subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on
an instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is
irrevocable. When the fair value has been determined based on level 3 inputs, the
difference between the fair value at initial recognition and the transaction price, if loss, is
recognized through retained carnings and after initial recognition subsequent changes in
fair value of equity instruments is recognised as gain or loss to the extent it arises from
change in input to valuation technique. If the Company decides to classify an equity
instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends,
are recognized in OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss,
even on sale of investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity.
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viii.  De-recognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized

when:

oThe right to receive cash flows from the assets have expired or
oThe company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or
oThe company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the assets, but has transferred control of the assets
b) Financial liabilities

i. Classification
Debt and equity instruments issued by the company arc classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual agreements and
the definitions of a financial liability and equity instrument.

i. Initial recognition and measurement

The company recognizes financial liability when it becomes a party to the contractual
provision of the instrument. .All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair valuc
minus, for financial liability not subsequently measured at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the issue of financial liability.

—

iii. Subsequent Measurement
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective

interest method or at FVTPL,

iv. Financial liability at amortized cost
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gain and losses are
recognized in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are derecognized. Amortized
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and
transaction cost. Their amortization is included as finance cost in the statement of profit and
loss. This category generally applies to loans & borrowings.

v. Financial liability at FVTPL
Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the financial liability is either
contingent consideration recognized by the company as an acquirer in a business
combination to which Ind AS 103 applies or is held for trading or it is designed as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gain or loss arises on re-
measurement recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in profit or loss
incorporates any interest paid on the financial liability.
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vi. Equity Instrument
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the company are
recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Repurchase of the company’s own equity instruments is recognized and deducted directly in
equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue, or
cancellation of the company’s own equity instruments.

vii. De-recognition
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are.
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amount recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

¢) Offsetting of financial instrument
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultancously.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, cheques on hand, deposits held at call with
banks. balance with banks on current accounts and short term, highly liquid investments with an
original maturity of three months or less that are readily convertible to cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.
For the purpose of statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short
term deposits, net of outstanding bank overdraft as they being considered as integral part of the
company’s cash management.
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the revenue can be reliably measured.
The Company carns revenue primarily from providing services involving sugar mill operations,
maintenance, refinery operations and performance improvement, process technology for refinery
ete. in India and abroad.
Revenue is recognised upon satisfaction of performance obligation by transferring of control of
promised products or services to customers at an amount of the transaction price that is allocated
to that performance obligation. The transaction price is the amount that the Company expects to
be entitled to in exchange of transferring promised goods or services to a customer.
For each performance obligation identified, determine at contract inception whether it satisfies the
performance obligation over time or at a point in time. If an entity does not satisfy a performance
obligation over time, the performance obligation is satisfied at a point in time
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Revenue related to fixed price maintenance and support services contracts where the Company is
standing ready to provide services is recognised based on time elapsed mode and revenue is
straight lined over the period of performance.

In respect of other fixed-price contracts, revenue is recognised using percentage-of-completion
method (‘POC method®) of accounting with contract costs incurred determining the degree of
completion of the performance obligation. The contract costs used in computing the revenues
include cost of fulfilling warranty obligations.

Revenue from the sale of distinct third party equipment is recognised at the point in time when
control is transferred to the customer.

The solutions offered by the Company may include supply of third-party equipment. In such
cases, revenue for supply of such third party products are recorded at gross or net basis depending
on whether the Company is acting as the principal or as an agent of the customer. The Company
recognises revenue in the gross amount of consideration when it is acting as a principal and at net
amount of consideration when it is acting as an agent.

Revenue is measured based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for
volume discounts, service level credits, performance bonuses, price concessions and incentives, if’
any, as specified in the contract with the customer. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from
customers.

Contract assets are recognised when there is excess of revenue earned over billings on contracts.
Contract assets are classified as unbilled receivables (only act of invoicing is pending) when there
is unconditional right to receive cash, and only passage of time is required, as per contractual
terms.

Unearned and deferred revenue (“contract liability™) is recognised when there is billing in excess
of revenues.

The billing schedules agreed with customers include periodic performance based payments and /
or milestone based progress payments. Invoices are payable within contractually agreed credit
period.

In accordance with Ind AS 37, the Company recognises an onerous contract provision when the
unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under a contract exceed the economic benefits to be
received.

Contracts are subject to modification to account for changes in contract specification and
requirements. The Company reviews modification to contract in conjunction with the original
contract, basis which the transaction price could be allocated to a new performance obligation, or
transaction price of an existing obligation could undergo a change. In the event transaction price
is revised for existing obligation, a cumulative adjustment is accounted for.

Interest Income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefit
will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is

/i
“ c‘ﬂ‘) -
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M.

accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognized when the Company’s right to receive the dividend is established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and
the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably i.e. in case of interim dividend, on the date
of declaration by the Board of Directors; whereas in case of final dividend, on the date of
approval by the shareholders.

Export Incentives
Export incentives are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is
no significant uncertainty in receiving the same.

Insurance Claims
Insurance claim are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted / expected to be admitted and to
the extent that the amount recoverable can be measured reliably and it is reasonable to expect
ultimate collection.

Expenses
All expenses are accounted for on accrual basis.

Foreign currency translations
Standalone financial statements have been presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency

a) Initial Recognition
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rate
prevailing at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

b) Transactions and balances

Monetary assets and liabilities related to foreign currency transactions outstanding at the
balance sheet date are translated at the functional currency spot rate of exchange prevailing at
the balance sheet date. Any income or expense arising on account of foreign exchange
difference either on settlement or on translation is recognized in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the initial transaction.

Taxes

a) Income tax
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Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the
extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognized directly in equity or in
other comprehensive income.

b) Current tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss
for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years.
The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured
using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable
right to set off the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the
liability on a net basis or simultancously.

¢) Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used
for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried forward tax losses
and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognized for:

e Temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a
transaction that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction;

e Temporary differences related to investments in subsidiarics, associates and joint
arrangements to the extent that the company is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in
the foreseeable future; and

o Taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which they can be used. In case of a history of continuous losses.
the company recognizes a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficient taxable profit will
be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realized. Deferred tax assets —
unrecognized or recognized, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognized/ reduced
to the extent that it is probable/ no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit
will be realized.

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realized, or the liability is settled, based on the laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the company expects, at the
reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax
authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be
realized simultaneously.

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credits is recognized as deferred tax assets in the Balance
Sheet only when the asset can be measured reliably and to the extent there is convincing
evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which the MAT credits can be
utilized by the company in future.

N.  Impairment

(i) Non-financial assets
Goodwill and Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortization but are tested annually for impairment.

Other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are evaluated for recoverability
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount (i.e. the
higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual
asset basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of
those from other assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash
Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date, if there is any
indication of impairment based on internal/external factor. An asset is impaired when the
carrying amount of the assets exceeds the recoverable amount. If the recoverable amount of
an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in
the statement of profit or loss in the year in which an asset is identified as impaired.

An impairment loss is reversed in the statement of profit and loss if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. The carrying amount of the
asset is increased fo its revised recoverable amount, provided that this amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any accumulated
amortization or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior
years.

(i) Financial assets
The company applies ‘simplified approach’ measurement and recognition of impairment
loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instrument and are measured at amortized cost e.g. loans,
debt securities, deposits, and bank balance.
e Trade receivables:
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I)

The application of simplified approach does not require the company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognized impairment loss allowance based on life time expected
credit loss at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit/loss for the year (before other
comprehensive income), attributable to the equity sharcholders, by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year (before other
comprehensive income), adjusting the after tax effect of interest and other financing costs
associated with dilutive potential equity shares, attributable to the equity sharcholders, by the
weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and
also the weighted average number of equity shares which could be issued on the conversion of
all dilutive potential equity shares.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the statement of profit or loss nel
of any reimbursement. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current
pre-tax rate that reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-oceurrence of one or more future events not
wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed
as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognized but disclosed, when possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity.

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets are reviewed at cach balance sheet date.

Cash Flow Statement

Cash flows are stated using the indirect method, whereby profit/loss before tax is adjusted for
the effects of transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future
operating cash receipts or payments and items of incomes and expenses associated with
investing or financing flows. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities
of the Company are segregated.
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4(a) Intangible Assets (Amount in Rs)

Particulars AR

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2019 1,059,539
Additions during the year =
Disposals/ Deductions during the year =
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 1,059,539
Amortization

Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2019 962,355
Amortisation during the year 32,736
Disposals/ Deductions during the year %
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2020 995,091
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 04,448
Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2020 1,059,539
Additions during the year -
Disposals/ Deductions during the year -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 1,059,539
Amortization

Accumulated amortisation as at April 1, 2020 995,091
Amortisation during the year 21,623
Disposals/ Deductions during the year -
Accumulated amortisation as at March 31, 2021 1,016,714
Net carrying amount as at March 31,2021 42,825

4(b) Right of use asscts (Amount in Rs)
Particulars Building

Gross carrying amount as at April 1, 2019 490,079
Additions during the year -
Disposals/ Deductions during the year -
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 490,079
Depreciation

Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2019 -
Depreciation for the year 326,719
Disposals/ Deduetions during the year -
Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2020 326,719
Net carrying amount as at March 31, 2020 163,360
Gross earrying amount as at April 1, 2020 490,079
Additions during the year .
Disposals/ Deductions during the year 490,079
Gross carrying amount as at March 31, 2021 -
Depreciation

Accumulated depreciation as at April 1, 2020 326,719
Depreciation for the year 163,360
Disposals/ Deductions during the year 490,079 % 1\§\\

=~

Accumulated depreciation as at March 31, 2021 - 20 ActS
Net earrying amount as at March 31, 2021 -




5 Investments

(Amount in R}

Aggregate Investimand carvied ol amortized cost
Aggregate lnvestment carried a1 fair value through OCH

15,000

Particulars Asal March 31| Asat Marel 31
2021 2020

{a) Investment in others - Careied af cost
Cazetech employee share plan trugt 15,000 15,000
TOTAL{A+E) 15,000 15,0011
Aggregate Book Value
= Quoted - -
- Unguarted 15,000 15,000
Summary:
Apgrecate lnvestment carried ot cost 15,000

6 lucome tnx nsscls (Net)

(Amount in Rsj

As at March 31,

As at March 31,

Particulars 2021 2020
Advance income tax 3856227 16,992,112
Less: Provision for current Lax - T58.000
TOTAL 5,656,227 16,234,112
7 Deferved tax assets (Net) {Amount in Rs)
y As at March 31, Asat March 31,
Particulars 2021 2020
Deferved Tax Assels
O account of temporary differnces on allowability of expenses for
1ax purposes 10,256,422 2038 438
O aceount of provision for doubtful debts and advances 1,856,963 #71,753
O aeeount of carmed forward losses and unabsorbed depriciation 767 360 6,075,086
On aceount of property |, plant & equipments 162 942 180,171
13,043,727 0,168,448
MAT Credat entitlement 99,000 2,133,000
TOTAL 13,142,727 11,298,448

Aovenent in deferred tax Liabilities! deferred tax Assets

Corried forward

Particnlars losses & Property Plant & Other items MAT Credit Toral
Unabsorbed Equipment Entitlement
Depreciation
At 3l1st Marvch 2019 7,699,888 202,654 2,270,400 1,375000 | 11,547 948
(Chargedieredited -
-to profin & loss (1,624,802} (22.483) 575,285 758,000 [EREREVI
-t other Comprehensive Income - - Gef 5K} - o4, 500
Al 3ist March 2020 6,075,080 180,171 2,910,191 2,133,000 11,298,448
(Charged eredied: -
-t profil & lass 15,307,726) 07,189y 9.320,194 (2.034000)| 1961279
-0 other Comprehensive Income - - {117,000.00) - (H7.nony
At 31st March 2021 167,360 162,982 12,113,385 99,000 | 13,142,727

Details ol unrecognised deferred tax assets:

{(Amount in Rs)

Particulars

As at Muarch 31,
2021

Az at March 31,
2020

Tax effeel on difference m the tax base value and carrymy amount of

716,097

6,880,319

8 Other Non Current Assels

{Amaonnt in Rs)

Particulinrs

As ot March 31,

Asat March 31,

2021 2020
(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)
Seeurity Deposits 362,500 1,118,391
TOTAL 362,500 1,118,391




T e

9 Trade Receivables {Amount in Rs)
Dbl Asalt March 31| Asat March 31,
021 2020
(Unsecured considered good unless othierwise stated) - Carvied at
amortized cost
Receivables from refared Parties - -
Receivables from (tlers 29,722,119 103,665,440
Trade recesvables Significant Inerease in Credit Risk - -
Trade recervables -Credit inpaived 6,376,713 3,352,805
Sub-total 36,098,854 107,018,335
Less; Allowance for credit loss 6,376,715 3,352,895
TOTAL 19,722,119 103,665,440
10 Cash & Cash Equivalents (Amount in Rs)
Pkticuliie Asat March 31,|  Asat Mareh 31,
2021 2020
Balamees with boanks :
=1 gurrent account 1,807,489 1,512,283
Crsle on hand 5,243 114,983
TOTAL 3,910,732 1,627,266
11 Bank Balances other than ensh and cash equivalenis (Amount in Rs)
e —— Asat March 31, Asat March 31,
2021 20201
Fised deposit with bank (Earmarked) 2,077,029 06,004 881
TOTAL 2,077,029 6,004,881

Note - - All deposits with banks are earmarked for specific purposes.

12 Leans (Amount in Rs)
FiikEei Asat March3L|  Asat March 31,
021 2020
Receivables Secured, consulered ool - -
Recevables Unsecured, considered good 13,341,375 12,144,525
R bles Significant | m Credit Risk - -
Receivables -Credit Impaired - &
Sub Total 13341375 12,144,525
13 Other financinl assels (Amount in Rs}
Asat March 31, As at March 31,
2021 2020
Py lins

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated) - Careied at
amoriized eost

o

Unbilled Revenue 46,257,142 14,397,676
Export incentives Receviables 1,696,312 1,696,312
Iterest Accrued 45,457 563 923
TOTAL 47,098,011 16,657,911
4 Other Current Assels (Amaonnt in Rs)
As ol March 31| Asat March 31,
Particulars 2021 020

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Advances recoverable in cash or i kind or for value 1o be received
Considered Doubiful

Addvanees to sippliers 509,903 -
Less: Allowance for doubtiul advances 509,903 -
Considered Good
Advanees 1o suppliers 18,002,557 6,323,471

Considered Doubiful
Advances 1o Employees 255,547 -
Less: Allowance for doubtful advances 255,547 -
Considered Gaod
Advances to Employees 2645417 2,274,306
Halanee with authonitics 2,246,880 =
TOTAL 22,894,854 $,597,779




Provisions-Non Current (Amount in Rs)
Asal March 31, As at March 31,
Prjteeling 2021 2020
Provision for employee benefit
Compensated absenees 1,210,917 1,533,384
TOTAL 1,210,217 1,533,584

Trade Pavable and Other Payable

{Amount in Rs)

As ot Mareh 31, As ot Mareh 31,

021 2020
I'articulnrs
Trade Payables -
= To MEME = *
= (her than MSME 67,468,801 93,706,862
TOTAL 67,468,801 93,706,862
Fallowing are the el lisclosures as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Developi

Partienlars

As ot March 31, As at March 31,

accounting year

b} The interest dug thereon remaining unpaid to supplicers as at the end
of pecounting year

¢} The amount of interest paid by the Company in tenns of Section 16,
nlong with the amoumt af payments made to the micro and small
enterprise eyand the appointed date during the period

d) The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment which have been paid but beyond the appomted day
during the penod but watheut adding the mterest specified inder this)
Act.

e) The amount of imerest accrved during the year and remaining
el al thee cond o e gecouniting yew

) The gmount of further mierest remaining due and payable even in
succeeding years

o) The prineipal amount remaining onpaid 1o suppliers as at the end of]

2021 020
Nl Nil
MNil Nil
Nil Mil
Nil Ml
Nil Mil
Nil Mil

9 ther Gnancial Hability

(Amount in Rs)

Asat March 31| Asat March 31,

= anl 2020]
Particulars
Carvied at pmortised cost
Fayable to Employees 22,713,294 23,244,149
TOTAL 22,713,294 23,244,149
20 Provision (Amount in Rs)
Asat March 31, Asat March 31,
21 2020
Particalars
Provision for employee benelit
Compensated nbsences 143,233 212,914
TOTAL 143,233 212,914
21 Other curvent liabilities (Amount in Rs)
Asat March 31, Asal March 31,
2021 200
Particulars
Advances receivesd from customers® 15,350,739 5,580,692
Statutory dues payable 1,265,607 13,286,321
TOTAL 16,616,346 16,867,013
* Refer Note No 33
22 Revenue from operation {Amount in Rs)
Year ended| Year ended Mareh
Barticulars March 31, 2021 31, 20201
Revenue from operations
Service Charges GLAT4 193 233,658 816
Sale of Traded Cloods - equipment - 1,866,117
91,414,193 237,524,933
Less:Credin note Issued during the vear relating 1o services rendered in
previous year® 34,378 871 =
57,035,322 237,524,933
Other operating revenne
Expont licentive - 18,873
TOTAL 57,035,322 237,563,800}

* Refer Note No. 41




23 (e Tneome

Partienlars

Year ended| Year ended Mareh

(Amount in Rs)

March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Interest meome on fnancinl assets enreied ot amorctized cost:
=Fixed deposis with bank 135,636 461,879
Inftrest an neome Tax refud 261,167 1, 100LAZR
MNet sain on foreign currency ransactions and translation - 446,222
Otlier nen-operating meome
=Ligbilitiesprovisions no longer required written back 3,516,956 34416
_'1"(_} AL, 4,313,759 2,542,945
24 Purchase of Stock-in-trade {Traded Goods) (Amonnt i Rs)
Particnlars Yenr ended| Year coded March
March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Purhases of traded goods - Equipment - 2,858,165
TOTAL - 2,858,365
25 Employee henefit expenses (Amount in Rs)
_I
| Particulnrs Year ended| Year ended Mareh
- Mareh 31, 2021 31,2020
Saliries, vages, bonus, conmussion, elc. 41,000,142 154,728,020
Canprilintan to provident and other funds * 2461 875 2,519,840
Stalf wellare ERpenses 320,097 2,268,212
E’I'M. 43,783,114 159,516,122
*inw ludes gratuity ¢xpenses [ Reter Note No. 37]
26 Deprecintion pnd amortisation expense {Amount in Hs)
Particulars Yenr ended| Year ended March
Mareh 31,2021 31, 2020]
Prepreciaien of Property, Plant & Equipment {Refer note ng. 4) 134,574 132088
Amprisation of Intangible ussets (Refer note no, 4A) 21,623 32,736
| Amprtsagion of rght of use (Refer note no. 44) 163,360 326,719
TOTAL, 319,557 491,540
(Amount in Rs)
o Year ended] Vear ended Rarch
| 4] Particulars Mareh 31, 2021 31,2020
Intelest espense:

Lhelay i depasit of statuary dues 203,038 525948
Intercst on lease liobilines 6,385 43,576
Dihers 252,531 248,386

ETM. 471,954 817,870
(Amount in Rs)

|
Particalars Year ended| Year ended March
[l March 31, 2021 31, 2020
Joby on contract 1,618,987 41,131 420
I’.mpluyca:'.-e an deputation - | 75,909
Peiger and fuel 551,819 744,905
Shegt Term Lease expenses 577519 1,235,506
Fnsfanee 274,875 440,297
Oflze runming and mamtenance 2,818,780 T16,7926
Coniractynl repairs and mamtenanee 4,463 400 1,320,707
Conpractyal peralty 1,387,117 7,016,280
Ratys & 'il‘mccs 454 830 275,263
Corgmunication expenses 48,048 174,225
Trazelling and conveyance 2,197,154 4,690,280
Trmpning Lixpenses - 400,944
Provdting qrid. statonery 14,040 97,188
Buginess promotion 128,004 1,367,994
Export expenses - 757479
Legnl and professional charges 3,433,785 7,306,069
Auditors’ remuneration ;

~Statutary audit 200,000 200,000

Loy an fareign currency fransactions and translation 279434 -
Prowigion for eredit loss on recervables and advances & other 3,789,270 3,352,895
| M 421,908 1,008,596
TONAL 24,664,464 72,482,688




20 a) Toax Expenses

{Amouni in_Hs

Fartieulirs Yenr ended| Year caded March
Maveh 31, 2021 31, 20240
Current Tax - 758,000
Deffered Tax (1,844,279) 314,000
Income tax ad) 3,273,338 -
TOTAL 1,429,059 1,072,000
(b) Reconcilintion of Tax Expense and Accounting Profit Multiplied
Profit Before Tox (7,890,008) 3,040, 166
Applicable Tax Rae 20 (0% 26.00%
Compuled Tax Expenses (2,051,402) 1,024,443
Adjustments for:
Expenses not allowed for tax purpose 207,123 47,557
Income tax al) 3,273,338 -
Net adjustments |
Al the effective income tax eate of 26,00% 1,429,059 1,072,060 0]
30 Payment to nuditors (Excloding GST) (Amount in Rs)
articulirs Year ended| Year ended Mareh
Murch 31,2021 31,2020
Statutery audit fee 200,000 200,000
TOTAL 200,004 200,000
3 Contingent Linbilities : (Amount in Ines)
Particulars Year ended| Year ended March
March 31, 2021 31,2020
Contingent Liabilitics :
Claims ngainst the Company not acknowledged as debts NIL NILJ
Ineome Tax demand on processing of TDS Return® 26.62 26,62
Guarnnlees NIL NILJ
Other Contingent Liabilinies NIL MNILJ
Commitments
Account ol provided Tor NIL NILJ
Unealled habilhves on shares and other investiments partly paid NIL| NI
Other Commitments NIL NIL

and necordingly no provision bas been considered necessary

32 Enrning Per Share

*The Company has been advised that the demands are likely to be eithereither deleted or substaintinlly reduced

(Amaount in Ks)

Pitlenlnrs Year ended| Year ended Mareh
March 31,2021 31, 2020/
Prafit/(loss) alter tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss (9,202,067) 2,868 166
Weighted average number ol equity shares cutstanding(Par value Rs.
10 per share) 235,800 235,800
- For basic and diluted earnings per share (Nos.)
Earning per Share
- Basic & Diluted EPS (39.02) 12,06




33 Transactions and Balances with Related Parties for the Period ended March 31, 2021

Name of the party Relationship
a. Key Managerial Personnel : Mr. Gurmit Singh Mann Director

Mr. Gurupal Singh Director

Mrs. Gursimran Kaur Mann Director

Mr, S.K. Ganguly Director ceased to be director we. [l -=---
b. Enterprise directly control reporting entity : Simbhaoli Sugars Limited Holding Company

(formerly known as Simbhaoli
Spirits Limited)

¢. Enterprises under common control : Simbhaoli i Private|Fellow Subsidiary
Limited
Uniworld  Sugars Private| Associates of Holding
Limited Company

d. Trusts : Casetech employee share plan
trust

Transactions with the above parties
(Amount in Rs)

PRI Year ended March 31,2021|  Year ended March 31, 2020
Rent Paid 260,000 360,000
Simbhaoli Sugars Limited 260,000 360,000
Expenses Paid 581,482 622,267
Simbhaoli Sugars Limited 581,482 622,267
Income from rendering services 19,263,763 17,614,842
Simbhaoli Sugars Limited 19,263,763 17.614.,842
Director Sitting Fee - 60,000
Mr. S.K. Ganguly - 60,000
Employees on Deputation - 175,909
Simbhaoli Sugars Limited
Uniworld Sugars Private Limited 175,909

Note: The transactions with related partics have been entered at an amount which are not materially different from those
on normal commercial terms.

Balances outstading at the end of the year
{(Amount in Rs)

Description Year ended March 31,2021|  Year ended March 31, 2020
Trade payables 1,251,707 1,251,707
Uniworld Sugars Private Limited 1,251,707 1,251,707
Other Current Liabilities 14,993,020 5315477
Simbhaoli Sugars Limited 14,993,020 5315477

ﬁ‘l‘. Ca,
e
l’cﬁ —~

‘,\\,GU.PT '
A

14




34 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's linancial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The Company's
financial risk management policy is governed by Financial Guidelines which are approved by the Board of Directors. The focus of
the risk management committee is to assess the unpredictability of the financial environment and to mitigate potential adverse
elfects on the financial performance of the company.

The Company’s principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables. The main purpose ol these financial labilitics is o
manage finances lor the Company’s operations. The Company principal financial asset includes trade and other receivables. and
cash and others financial assels that arise directly from ils operations.

The Company's activities are exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices, Market risk comprises two types of risk: foregin currency risk and other risks, such as commaodity price risk. The sensitivity

of the relevant prolit or loss item is the effeet of the assumed changes in respective market risks.

(a) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in
loreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Company's foreign currency trade receivables,

FForeign Curreney exposures that are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise as follows:
Foreign Currency Exposure as at 31st March 2021

Particulars usp INR
Trade Receivables 102.841 | 7.5354.700
IForeign Currency Exposure as at 31st March 2020

Particulars Usb INR
Trade Receivables 102.841 | 7.752.790

Foreign Currency Sensitivity
1% increase/decrease in foreign currency will have no material impact on Profit.

(b) Commodity price risk
Commodity price risk is the price uncertainty that adversely impacts the financial results of those who both use and produce
commodities. The Company is a service providing company and do net involve any specific Commodity price risk.

Credit risk

a) Credit risk arises [rom the possibility that counter party may not be able 1o settle their obligations as agreed, Company is
exposed to credit risk from trade receivables and deposits with banks. To manage this, Company periodically assesses the
financial reliability of customers, taking into account factors such as credit track record in the market and past dealings with the
Company for extension of ¢redit to customer. Outstanding customer receivables are regularly monitored. Concentrations of
credit risk are limited as a result of the Company’s large and diverse customer base. Company has also taken advances and
seeurity deposits from its customer / agents, which mitigate the credit risk to an extent. The ageing of the trade reccivables is
given below:

(Amount in Rs)

Particulars As at March  As at March
31,2021 31,2020
Upto 6 months 7.730,085 85,352,872
More than 6 months 21,992,034 18.312.568
TOTAL 29,722,119 103,665,440
/g@{{h Cor
r‘;-fi ..
A |
/.:
-/." at




£20°S0T°0F1 £20°061°0%1 S]2SSY [BIDUBULY [€J0 ]
[16°L£9°9] 116°L89°9] SI2SSE [RIDUEBUL] 1210
188°760°9 - 2 [88°+60°9 1u2[eAinba
Yse2 _..Em nm.mu _.meu Lm_,_uo mmozm_wﬁ v_cﬁm

99Z°LT9'l - = 99T°LT9'l [ 1a[eAmnba yses pue ysed
Ceerriel = o CLEPPITI cl Sue0T
0P $99°c01 = = 0FP S99°€01 6 S3|qEAledal apel |
nnn‘gl - nnn‘el = < SIUQUIISAAU]
19SSV [RIdUBHI]

[e10], 1D01Ad 1500 0D pashulonty "ON JON 13)9y S.AB[NAILIB]
IN[EA SUIALIE)

(s u1 junowy) 0707 “1€ Y4B 1B SY
S60°781°06 - - €60°781°06 SaNIIqElT] [EURUL] [B10],
6T CIL'TT - - 6T CILTT 61 SnI[IqelT [eIdUBUL] IO
108°89%°L9 = = 108°89%°L9 g1 sajqeAed spel|

SanIIqerT [eloueulf
991°C90°L6 - 000°S1 991°0S0°L6 S)ASSY [erdueUl] [EJO]
116'866°Ly = = 116°866°LY el S]asse [BloueUl] Ia1Q)
620°LLOT - = 6C0°LLOT Il wapeamba

ﬁ_wdo ﬁcm Lwﬁu z.mﬁ ._uﬁb mMUEm_mﬁ x:am
TELDIGE = = TELOI6E 0l juajeamba yses pue yse)
SLEIPEE] i & SLETPE T Cl sue07]
611°TTL 6T = = 611°TTL6T 6 S9]qEeAlIR221 2pEL ],
000°C1 = 000°¢1 i S SIUALUISAAL]
uumm< [EDU wﬂ_._..—

[e101 [D0IAd 1500 i B il | *ON 310N 13]J3Y SIB[NIAE]

aN[eA SUIALIE)

(S¥ ur Junowy)

170 ‘1€ Yo1BA 1B SY

"Auedwo)) ayy o] sawvrjod Bununosoe Ul paure[dxa S SIUSWNIISUL [BIOUBUL] JO LONIUS0021 10] BLIDILID Y |

A1089180 £q S)udmINISUI [RIDUBUL] Y

SJUAWIINSEIJA] IN[BA JIE] PUE UOLIBIJISSBD ‘SUIUNOIDY - SJUIUNIISU] [BIOUBUL] OF



8) mﬁﬁ\\,}\ 4

e

-1224 24} SULIND [2A2] J2UI0UR 0] [9AI] 2UQ WIOIJ IDJSURI) OU ST 211 ]
“(smdun ajqeatasqoun) elep Jo)JBW 2]BAIIS]O U0 PISE( JOU 2.8 eyl SIN|IGRI] JO $1asse 2y} 10 sinduj ¢ [2A27]
"Apoaaipul 10 A[30211p Jayna “AIIqe!] 10 J9SSE aU} J0] 2]qBAIISQO 2IE 1BY] | [9AT Ul papnioul saaud pajonb uey sayio sinduj iz [oAe]

"SanI[IqeI] 10 SJASSE [BD1IUAPI 10} S1a3IBuI @ATjoR ul (pajsnlpeun) seoud pajong) 1] [2Aa7]

"SIUSWINISUT 2521 JO S21LINJBW ULID-LIOYS a1} 01 anp K[a51e] 1500 SurdLred
S11 WOJ] JURIRJJIP AJ[BLI21RL JOU S| 1S0O PIZILIOWE Je PaLlies SaMj|IqeI] [BIOUBUL JUSLIND 12110 pue sajqeded 121j0 pue 2pel) ‘sjasse [eloueul]
JU2LIND J2YJO PUB SUBO| ‘S2|QBAI021 J2UJ0 PUB PRI ‘SjudjeAinba Yses pue Yyseo UByj I2UJ0 SeouB[eq jueq ‘sjusjeAainba yseo pue yseo Jo anjea 1eJ

:S9N[BA A1) 1EWNSI 01 pasn suondwinsse pue poy3awu Suimoj[o]

*3]QE) 3] YIBALIDPUN SMO[[O] [2A2] YoBS Jo uoneurdxe Uy "piepur)s Supunoode 2y} Jopun paquasald sjoA] 231yl 21 0JUl SJUSWNNSUT [BIOUERLL]

S1L payisse(o sey Auedwio)) syl “anjea e} SululuLilap w pasn sindul ay) jo Ajijiqeijal 3yl Inoqe uonedipul ue apiacid 0] "anjea 11e) 18 painsealu

puUB pazZIUF0221 aIv 1R} SJUSWNISUI [RIDURLL] ) JO SanjeA 1e] a1} SUIUTULIID Ul 9peUI saens2 pue syuawaSpnl ayy surejdxa uonoas siy |
AY2IRIAY aN|BA J1B] g

979 FTI‘LII - - 9T9FTI'LIL SaNI[IqeI] [eldUEUl] [B10 L
VOL'LIF'ET " - FOLLIY'ET 61 Sani[Iqer [BlouBUL] 12110
798°90L°¢6 = .. 798790L°¢€H 8l sa[qeded apei]

- sSuIMoLIOg UL [ 1I0YS
SaDIIqEIT] [eIouRLLy




3T Empleyee Benefits;

As per Indian A e

| =19 B

I Befined Contribution Plan

Benefns®, the disclosures of Employee Benefits are as follows:

Employee benefits i the form of Provident Fund, Employee State © Cerp [ESIC) and superannuation fund
are considered as defined contrbution plan
During the year, the Company has | the fol i inthe s of Profit and Loss;
[Amuount in Ry}
Beseviption Yeur ended March Vear ended March
31,2021 31,2020
Employer's contnbution o Providem Fund 1,895,573 2,059,003
Employer's conribution te Sup on Fund 22,455 29,940

2 Defined benefit Plan

Liabulity for emplayee benefits has been determined by nn actunry, appointed for the purpose, in conformity with the principles set ot
i the bl AS19, the details of which nee as hereunder;

() Principal Assumpions

Gratwity {Funded) Cumy 1 AL (Unfunded
Partieulies
Atst March 2021 | 315t March 2020 3150 Murch 2021 31t Murch 2020
Discount Rate (Per Annum) 6, 60% 6. GO 6 B5% 6,60%
Expected Rate of Solary Incresss frtlr_n;?;;:s‘ 3% For the first Year |5% for the first Year & |5% for the first Year &
- & 5.2% thereafter  |5.2% thereafter 5. 2% therealler
therentier
|Muruilng Rate (% o 1ALM 12-14) 1 060% 100%
Aurition/Withdrawnl ate 2.00% 2.00% 2.00% 2.00%
Rate of Leave Availment (Per Anium) NA NA ';’;:L’:e':l”:‘ | ;’:‘ l;:LT:n:l“ ) OT:‘_"
Iilntc of Leave Encashment during NA NA ° 0
Emplayment {Per Annum)
(b)) Amowni R d it § of Profit & Loss and Other Comprehensive Incomea in respeet of the Define (Ameunt i R}
Pt il Grattuity (Funded) (& I Absence {Unfunded
2020-21 2019-20 2020-21 201920
Components of defined benelit cost
vecoguised in prafit or loss
Currént Service Cost 519,362 438,101 278,277 422,489
Past Service Cost - -
Terest Cost 248,586 248,386 115174 154,203
Actuarial (gain)loss from change i
financial assuniplions (21,779 409,049, {20,395) 143,231
Actuamial (g iloss arising from
peri I (359,314) (165,449,04) (261.478) 1702,714)
Componeits of defined beaefit cost
1 in profit or loss 767,948 GRG, 747 111.578 17,209
Compuonents of defined benefir cost
recagnised in Other Comprehensive
Incwme
Actuarial (pain)less o change m
(iancial pli (21,7749) 409 0449 - -
Actuanial {pain)/loss ansing from
exprerience id (359,314) {165,444} - -
Return on plan assets (higher)lower that
Jiscount rite | 1,9:99.00) “ -
Return on plan assets excluding amount
in net interest expenss (1,485) 1679} = -
Total actuarial (uain)loss recognised in
Driheer C Ineoime (452,578) 240,972 - -
Total amonnt recognised in siatement
ol profit & losy 315370 927,719 111,578 17,200
(e} Theamaunt included in Balence Sheet arising from the company's obligation in respect of its dofined benefit plan is as follows:
(Amount i Rs)
Pasticnlars Gratuity (Funded) Compensnied Absence (Unfunded)
315t Murch 2021 | 31st Mareh 2020 dlst March 2021 3150 March 2020
Present Value of Defined Benefit
Obligation 4,134,775 3814901 1,354,150 1,746,298
J’_:l‘LI:V_:II\m of Plan Assel 50,288 A5, 784 - -
Net liability arising from defined benefit
aliligation (4,084,487 (3,769,117) (1,354, 150) {1,746,295)
“Mon Curcent Luability - - 1210917 (1,551,384}
*Current Liabilily (4.084,487) (3.769.117) 143,233 (212.914)
feb) Movernent in the Fair vildue of phin assets are as follows! [Amoung i B}
Pacticulns Fraduity (Funded) Compensated Absence (Unfunded)
020-21 2019-20 2020-21 201920
Opening fair value of plan assels 45,784 42311 NA NA
Tivistient lncome 3,019 3,201 NA A
F\!ployer Contnbution - 441,500 NA NA
Employed's Contribution -
* Keturn on plan assets (higher ) lower
1hin discount rale 1,485 679 A A
Benelit Paud (1,907 ) NA N
|Clusjn;: fniv vinlue of plin nssels 50,285 45,784 MNA NA

L




(e} Movement i the present value of defined benefit obli are as follows {Amonnt in Bs)
i Gratuity (Funded) Comy | Absenee (Unfunded)
2020-21 200920 2020-21 2019-20

Opening defined benelit obligati 3,814,901 3,328,209 1,746,298 2,038,058
Current service cost 519,362 438 361 278,277 422,489
Interest cost 251,605 251,587 LS, 174 154,203
Remensurement (gaing)losses:
* Acwanal (gaindiloss from change i (91,779) 408 (0149 (20,395) 14320
finaneial assumptions
* Actuarial {gainyloss arising from (352,314) {167,398) (261,474) (702,714}
experience adju
Past Service Cost - =
Bencfits paid by cployer (441,907) (503.7206) (30K,99)
Benefits pad from plan assets - - - -
Closing defined benefit obligati 4,134,775 3. 814,901 1,354,150 1,746,298

(0 Sensitivity Analysis
Gratuity {unded) {Amouin Ks)
Tmpact on defined benefit oblignrion

Particutacs Change in lucrense in assumpt ion Dum"“f 8
ption by
Increase/deerense 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20 S1-Mar-21 S1-Mae-20
Biseounting rte 1.00%0| In Rs 3,685 661 3,391,210 4,674,665 4325 194
Future salary growth rale 10050 ln Rs 4,679 055 4,328,291 3674717 3,381,631
Atrition rate 0. 50%0|In Rs 4,212,384 3,880,115 4,045,103 3,730 A08
NlOlI:]“Ix rate 10.0:0% ) In Hs 4,137,497 J.817.178 4,132,041 3812613
Compensated Absence (Unfunded) {Ameaunt in isy
Tinpact on defined henelil obligation

Change in

Particulary by Incrense in agsnmption Decrease in assumplinng

= Inerenseidecrease S1-Mar-21 AL-Mar-20 31-Mapr-21 Sl-Alar-20
Discounting rate |.00%)1In Rs. 1,268,557 1,598,742 1,451,884 1,921,102
Satary growih rate 1. 00%]1n Rs, 1,452,702 1,922,147 1,266,385 1,506 382
Altrition mte 0.50%]1n Rs. 1,327,571 1,738,389 1,382,959 1,753, 8a0
Mortality rate 10.00%] In Rs, 1,353,567 1,746,061 1,354,935 |, 746,534

* The plan assets are maintained wah 1CICT Prodential life Insurance Company Ltd
() Risks velated 1o defined benefit plans ¢

WValuntions are performed on centain basic set of’ pre determined ionis s other lntary fr k which may vary overtine, Thus, the company is exposed o vinions
visks in providing the above benefits which are as follows:

i} Interest vate visks The plan exposes the company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the ultimate cost of providing (he above benelit
e will thus resull m merease in the value of the liability

Liquidity Risk: This is the risk that the Company is not able 1o meet the short-term gratuity piyouts. This may arise due 1o nan avadlabilty of enough cash £ cosh equnalen 1o mee
the liabilities or holding of its liquid assets not being sald in time.

ii

{0

Salury Escalation Risl: The present value of the defined benefit plan is d with 1he of salicy rate of plan partieipants in future, Deviation i the rale of
inerense of salary in futre for plan participants from the rate-of incrense in salary used 1o detormume the present value of obligation will have a Bearing on the plan’s linbiliny

v} Demogeaphic Risk: The Company las used certain martality and attrition plions m of the Dability,

vy Regulwory Risl: Grataiy benefit is paid in accordance with the requirements of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 fas amended from lime 1o time], There is a risk of clinnge in
regulations requiting higher gratwity pavouts (¢ Increase in the maximum limit an gratuity of Rs, 20,00,0600),
vi) Asset Liability Mismatching or Macket Risk: The dumtion of the labilty is fonger pured 1o duration of assets, exposing the Company fo market risk for valadines/fall m

nerest rale,

il Investment Risk: The probabulity o likelibood of aceurrence of losses relative to the expected return on any particular investment
Nate: The above i o standard list of risk exposures in providing the gratuity benefit. The Company is advised to earefully examine the above listand make suiiable amendiments
tmcluding addug more nisks, if relevant) to the same before disclosing the sbove in its financial statements.

Methad and Assumptions related terms;

0 Diseount Rate: Diseount rate is the rate which is used to discount future benelit cash Mows to determne the present value of the defined benefin oblbgition at the valuaton date The
rate is based on the prevailing market yields of high quality corporate bonds at the valuation date for the expested 1erm of the obligation. In countries where there is no sueh bonds,
the miarket yialds at the val dinte on g bends for the ted term 15 used.

1} Salary Esealntion Rate: The rate at which salaries are expected to escalate in future. 1t 1s used 10 determine the benefit based on salary

uil Adtrition Rate: The reduction in staflemployees of n eompany through normal means, such as retirement and resignation. This is

v} Moriality Rate: Mortality mie is o measure of the number of deaths (in general, or due to a specific cavse) i a population, scaled 1o the

W

Prajected Unit eredit Method: The Projected Unit Credit Method (sometimes knowan as the acerued benefit method pro-mied on serviee or ss the benefit?yenes of service method]
constders ench period of service as giving rise to an additional unit of benelit entit) el each unit 10 build up the final abligation. TheP
Method reyuires an enterprise to atiribute benefit 1o the current period (in order 1 determing current service cost) and the current and prio periods [in ard
value of dafined benefit obligations)




38 The company had taken head office premises on long term in an earlier year. This Lease Contract have
been classified as long term leases and accordingly accounted for as per Ind-As 116.

Following are the changes in the carrying value of right of use assets for the year ended March 31, 2021:

The aggregate depreciation expense on ROU assets is included under depreciation and amortization

expense in the statement of Profit and Loss.

(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars Premises
Transition effect as on April 01, 2019 4.90
Additions during the year
Deletion during the year
3.27
Depreciation during the year
Balance as at March 31, 2020 1.63

Following is the break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as at March 31,2020 (Rs. In

Lacs)

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

Current Lease Liabilities in respect of short-term lease

Current Lease Liabilities in respect of long-term lease

1.74

Non-Current Lease Liabilities

Total

1.74




39

40

Following is the movement in long term lease liabilities during the year ended March 31, 2020:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

Balance at the end

Transition effect as on April 01, 2019 4.90
Additions during the year

0.44
Finance Cost Accrued during the year

| Deletions during the year
(1.98)

Payment of Lease Liabilities during the year -
Translation Difference

3.36

The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturities of lease liabilities as at March 31,

2020 on an undiscounted basis:

Particulars

As at March 31, 2020 |

Less than One Year 1.74
One to Five Year }
More than Five Year .
Total 1.74

Segment Reporting

The Company's business activity falls within a single business segment viz "Income from sugar

technology and allied activities", the segment disclosure requirements of Indian Accounting Standards

(Ind AS 108 ) "Segment Reporting" is accordingly not applicable.

The Company has been contesting legal cases against certain mala fide activities resulting from breach of
fiduciary duties committed by certain previous directors/senior executives of the Company by making
false recommendations and setting-up parallel business entities in competitive areas.

During the earlier years, the Company has initiated legal proceedings to make recoveries from such

directors/senior executives in the appropriate legal forums. The said directors/senior executives had also
initiated a legal case before the Hon'ble Company Law Board (CLB) against the company, which was
dismissed on February 23, 2016, however, on application of such directors/senior executives in the
previous year, the matter was again admitted for hearing by the Hon'ble National Company Law ‘Tribunal
(NCLT). In another suite filed by the Company, Hon'ble High Court of Delhi had granted the injunctions
to refrain such director/senior executives from making the mis-representations, that they are associated




with the Company in any manner to the public at large. The said matter is sub-judices and the recovery
proceedings are in progress.

42 Details of loan and advances given, investment made and securities provided as required to be  disclosed
as per provisions of Section 186 (4) of the Companies Act, 2013 have been disclosed in respective heads.

43In the opinion of the Board, current assets and loans and advances have realisable value in the ordinary
course of business at least equal to the value at which they are stated in the balance sheet.

44, Previous year's figures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with the
current year's classifications.

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
FOR MITTAL GUPTA & CO.
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
FIRM REGN. NO: 01874C
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